M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 17, 2004
6: 02 PM

TAPES

SFC-04 # 50, Side
SFC 04 # 50, Side
SFC 04 # 51, Side
SFC 04 # 51, Side

W>w>

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the neeting at approxinmately 6:02 PM
PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

Senator Ben Stevens

Al so Attending: SENATOR JOHN COWDERY; SENATOR GARY STEVENS;
SENATOR CGENE THERRI AULT; SENATOR TOM WAGONER;

Testifiers are listed in the mnutes in the order they testified.

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

Public Testinony on Conference of Al askans Resol utions

Co-Chair WIlken noted the followwng wtness has submtted
editorials to the Anchorage newspaper regarding incone taxes.

DONALD ANDERSON testified via teleconference from an offnet
| ocation in Anchorage about the loss of Alaska's wealth due to
federal incone taxes on permanent fund dividends (pfd) and ot her
distributions. He told of his experience in creating conputerized
nodels to sinmulate real world events. He reported that in 2001, the
nost recent year that information is available from the federal
I nternal Revenue Service, Al askans paid approximately $186 mllion
in taxes on the pfd. He calculated this at 17 percent of the total

SFC- 03 (1) 03/ 17/ 04



anount distributed. He remarked that the | arger dividend paynents
proposed by forner Governor Hanmmond woul d result in 18 percent paid
to the federal governnent. He furthered that Governor Hammond's
proposed incone tax would generate approximately $93 nillion
annually, but collected at a total cost of $25 million. He
predi cted such action would incur the resentnents of those citizens
"who know this waste is totally unnecessary." He submtted the
funds should be withdrawn from"the source" before the inposition
of a federal incone tax. He asserted that utilizing the m ninum
anount necessary to fund governnment services is "the only viable
| ong-term strategy"” that would produce "m nimum danmage" to the
St at e.

Senator Bunde clarified it would cost $25 mllion for the State to
establish an incone tax collection "bureaucracy".

M. Anderson corrected the annual cost would be $8.6 mllion and
$6.1 mllion in set up costs. He explained the $17 nmillion
di fference represents the loss to citizens on the taxes on the $93
mllion collected.

M. Anderson indicated he woul d submt a spreadsheet to denonstrate
hi s findings.

M. Anderson next addressed the concept of sales tax. He noted this
tax affects nore people and therefore receives significant
opposition. He stated that sales tax "captures a fixed proportion
of expendi tures” whether purchasing a "Yugo or a Lanborghini".

M. Anderson listed four negative inpacts of incone tax: growth is
affected by inconme tax, |ower incone, high governnent cost, and
unstable revenue. He detailed each of these conponents, as
represented by actions of other states.

Senator Dyson interjected to question the figures relating to high
government costs incurred by states that inpose an incone tax,
saying the information did not provide the conplete "picture". He
asked the tax revenue generated by the eight states with the
hi ghest per capita expenditures conpared to the eight states with
t he | owest.

M. Anderson did not have this information.
Senat or Dyson assuned nore factors were involved than refl ected.

M . Anderson gave the psychol ogical factor and the exposure factor
of incone tax as exanpl es.

SFC- 03 (2) 03/ 17/ 04



M . Anderson continued speaki ng agai nst incone taxes, asserting it
nostly affects those who are "making it". He remarked that due to
multiple levels of taxation, these people are often "stifled in
their attenpts at expansion.” He offered his e-nmil address:
don. ander son@of t warenorth.comto those interested in receiving the
af orenenti oned spreadsheet.

Senator Bunde relayed quotes that incone tax has mninum
participation, in that about 20 percent of the popul ous pays 80
percent of the tax. He asked if the wtness had additional
information to support this statenent.

M. Anderson had data relating to the federal incone tax, but not
for an Al aska state incone tax.

Senat or Bunde comented to the broader inclusion of a sal es tax.
M . Anderson agreed.

Senat or Dyson noted that many undertake efforts to avoid paying
taxes, such as nmaking purchases via nail order and wthout
inposition of a sales tax. He asked the inpact of transferring
transactions to the "black market".

M . Anderson qualified he has not studied this matter, He surm sed
that many purchases nade locally are primarily for convenience
reasons, as shipping and ot her expenses nmake purchases hi gher than
in the "Lower 48".

Senat or Bunde spoke of teenage strippers earning $250,000 annual ly
in cash and asked if the witness had information about cash incone.

M. Anderson did not.

RAPHAEL MURRAN, Adm nistrator, Cty of Hooper Bay, testified via
tel econference froman offnet site in Hooper Bay about the effect
of State budget reductions on the community. He informed that nost
of the police force was elimnated. He renmarked that reductions in
State funding results in loss of federal funding as well, due to
mat ching fund requirenments. He stated that a sales tax would result
in less revenue because of the negative inpact it would have on
| ocal economies. He opined that if an incone tax were enacted "poor
men woul d get richer and rich nen woul d get poorer."

AT EASE 6:35 PM/ 6:46 PM

JANET BI FELT, Mayor, City of Hughes, testified via tel econference
from an offnet location in Hughes that because grants from the

SFC- 03 (3) 03/ 17/ 04



revenue sharing program have not been forthcom ng, the conmunity
woul d continue to suffer. She stated that the conmunity requires
funds for the Village Safe Water programto provide safe drinking
water for the residents and the schools. She spoke to the
difficulties rural residents, accustonmed to a subsistence
lifestyle, would have if forced to relocate to urban areas.

AT EASE 6:50 PM/ 7:00 PM

ARLI SS STURGULEWSKI, fornmer State Senator, and Delegate to the
Conference of Alaskans, testified via teleconference from
Anchorage, in appreciation of the Legislature's efforts. She stated
that despite favorable oil prices, the State has serious
"structural damage"” in its funding procedures. She told of the
i ssues brought before the Conference of Al askans. She stressed the
benefits of utilizing a portion of the earnings of the Permanent
Fund and of instituting a five-year nmarket value payout system She
preferred a constitutional anendnment, rather than statutory
provi sions to acconplish this. She did not support enshrining the
dividend in the Alaska Constitution, but noted if wunder
consi deration, the percentage anount should not be stipulated in
the Constitution. She expressed that the Constitution was carefully
authored to maintain the ability of the Legislature to appropriate
funds. She stated that a statewide sales tax would cause
difficulties for those communities that inpose a |ocal sales tax,
suggesting residents could be forced to shop regionally or outside
the State.

JOE SONNEMAN testified in Juneau about his education and experience
in public finance. He spoke of developnment of oil in poor
countries, opining these countries do not benefit from such
devel opnent. He stated these countries tend to overspend when the
revenues are available but are faced with deficits once the
revenues decline. He referenced an article in the Econoni st, "Can
oil ever help the poor?" [Copy on file.]

M . Sonneman stressed need to "focus on the inpossible rather than
the possible.” He gave as an exanpl e the Departnent of Corrections,
whi ch he said has grown primarily because of the crimnalization of
many activities. He suggested the crimnal statutes be changed. He
al so suggested that limted liability provisions shoul d be extended
only to infant conpani es.

SFC 04 # 50, Side B 07:12 PM

M. Sonneman questioned the validity of the Conference of Al askans,

SFC- 03 (4) 03/ 17/ 04



saying the delegates were not elected, as delegates to the
Constitutional Convention were, and because the average incone of
Conference of Al askans delegates was higher than average for
Al aska.

Senat or Bunde asked the w tness' understanding of "raiding the
Per manent Fund", noting that the corpus could not be accessed
except by investnent actions of the Fund's Board of Trustees.

M. Sonneman responded that utilizing the Fund's earnings for State
government after 83 percent of voters participating in the
Sept enber 1999 special election on the issue voted against such a
proposal would be viewed as a raid.

MONTE SHADE, 66-year old MIlitary Veteran and |ong-term Al askan
Resident, testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks that he has
never mssed participating in an election. He asserted that the
mninmal responsibility of the Legislature is to adhere to the
w shes of residents. He surm sed that budget difficulties could be
sol ved wi th budget reductions. He stated | ocal governnents practice
in this manner, exanpling the reduction of the pupil transportation
programin the Fairbanks North Star Borough. He remarked that the
funding appropriated to education, including the University of
Al aska, results in a "brain drain" in that educated residents
rel ocate out of state.

JERRY BROMN testified via tel econference from Fairbanks that the
original intent of the Al aska Permanent Fund was for capital
i nprovenent projects and that the current proposals are intended
for operating expenses. He remarked that the public has stated that
Per manent Fund earni ngs shoul d not be used, that the budget should
be reduced and at that point if funding is necessary then the
earni ngs of the Permanent Fund coul d be accessed. He suggested the
earnings of the Fund could be utilized as a | oan programto fund
rail roads, schools and other capital inprovenents with repaynent,
rat her than fundi ng operati ng expenses. He spoke of tourists and
nonresi dent workers who utilize the State's infrastructure and
shoul d contribute to the expense of such operations. He urged the
Comm ttee vote agai nst each of the proposed resol utions.

Senat or Bunde clarified the wtness stated the original intent of
t he Permanent Fund was for capital projects.

M. Brown responded that Al askans woul d prefer those expenditures
be for lasting infrastructure.

Senator Bunde referenced the supporting argunents for the
establi shnent of the Pernmanent Fund contained in the voter's

SFC- 03 (5) 03/ 17/ 04



panphlet. He cited the intent that the Fund woul d be established to
be available for a "rainy day" in the future. He al so disagreed
t hat nonresident workers could contribute a significant portion to
deficit and cited figures denonstrating this.

ROGER GAY, resident of Big Lake, testified via tel econference from
Mat-Su in opposition to the Conference of Al askans. He remarked
that the Governor did not have authority to appoint certain people
to make decisions that would affect all Al askans. He noted the
deci sions reached were nade in only three days and w thout public
testinmony. He stated the legislators are elected to address the
i nportant issues. He expounded on the premse of a republic
governnment to have elected representation. He quoted Thomas
Jefferson and Sanuel Adans.

ED ZASTROW President, AARP - Local 35, and 35-year Al aska
Resident, testified via teleconference from Ketchikan that this
i ssue has been often discussed with the |egislators representing
Ket chi kan. He renmarked that the organi zation supports an incone
tax. He addressed a proposed equal division of earnings to dividend
and governnent services, stressing the dependence of seniors on the
pfd. He exanpled one elderly resident able to purchase eyegl asses,
new cl ot hes and shoes and al so pay utility bills with the dividend
paynent. He relayed the education of organization nenbers and
seniors on the issue of POW and the increasing costs of Medicare.
He stated the organi zati on does not oppose the use of a portion of
earni ngs for Medicare expenses, but did not support the addition of
new prograns.

DAVE  TRANTHAM 57-year Al askan resident, testified via
tel econference fromBethel that he first cane to the State in 1941
while serving in the US Air Force. He addressed Senator B. Stevens'
| egislation to inplenent a sales tax. He spoke to the higher cost
of items in rural comunities, noting purchases would be tw ce the
anmount as paid in Anchorage. He recommended the Legislature adopt a
fiscal plan this year. He enphasi zed the inportance of the pfd to
rural residents. He supported the proposed comunity dividend to
repl ace the revenue sharing grant program which has not been
funded in recent years. He stated that an incone tax would have a
| esser inpact on rural residents. He supported a tobacco tax
i ncrease of $1 per pack and surnmised other residents would al so
support this tax. He al so suggested inplenmentation of user fees,
noting that residents pay very little for services.

CHERYL KEEPERS testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks that she
agreed with the findings of the Conference of Al askans that
revenues are insufficient to neet the need for governnent services.
She acknow edged the "devil is in the details" but urged the

SFC- 03 (6) 03/ 17/ 04



Legi sl ature adopt a fiscal plan.

CARL BENSON testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks that A aska
needs a long-term fiscal plan imediately. He supported a State
income tax in conjunction with utilizing a portion of earnings of
t he Permanent Fund for governnent services. He stated this would
garner revenue from nonresi dent workers. He noted that incone tax
is regressive, particularly to rural residents.

SCOTT SAXON, Wasilla resident, testified via teleconference from
Mat - Su about his concern that the Conference of Al askans did not
provi de adequate representation. He disagreed with assertions that
the State "could not save noney", comenting that as a State
enpl oyee, he recognized where reductions could be nade. He
suggested "cl osi ng | oophol es” and requiring val ue added processing
for |logging. He supported POW, predicting that funding governnent
agencies with Permanent Fund revenues woul d provide incentive for
agencies to reduce spending to mnimze the anount diverted from
di vidends. He preferred a sales tax to an incone tax. He referenced
other testinony relating to the higher cost of living in rural
comunities, but stressed it also costs nore for the State to
provi de services to those areas.

KAYE SAXON, Wasilla resident, testified via tel econference from
Mat - Su that she was raised in Al aska. She stated that although she
would Iike to stay home with her children, she is unable and that
her famly resides in an area wth enploynent and education
opportunities. She preferred others to take responsibility for
their circunstances. She stated that budget reductions nust
continue to be identified. She supported funding governnent
servi ces from Permanent Fund earnings, as this would equally inpact
all residents.

PH LLIP FURBUSH testified via teleconference from Mat-Su in
opposition of enshrining dividends in the Constitution. He stated
this would prioritize payouts over inflation proofing and
protection of the Fund itself. He remarked, "The state of Alaska is
spending a lot of noney": two to three tines the anount expended by
other states and is done without regard to the future. He charged
that current practices are not addi ng value to renewabl e resources.
He stated the establishnment of the Fund is the only action nmade to
benefit future residents. He charged that the current generation
must "pay" nore of its "share" and "build" for the future.

MARGARET RUSSELL, Chair, Board of Directors, Fairbanks Chanber of
Conmmerce, and Conferee to the Conference of Al askans, testified via
tel econference from Fai rbanks about use of Pernmanent Fund ear ni ngs
for government services. She stressed the inportance of considering

SFC- 03 (7) 03/ 17/ 04



all avail abl e i nconme sources.

SFC 04 # 51, Side A 08:00 PM

Ms. Russell spoke of funding needed for education. She noted that
sone conferees to the Conference of Al askans included incone tax as
an option for revenue generation. She questioned those who support
i ncone tax and al so assert dependence on divi dend, suggesting they
cal cul ate how they woul d be affected by an i ncone tax. She surm sed
many residents would ultimtely pay an anount equal to their
dividend in taxes. She thought that acceptance of the POW proposa
by the public could be conprom sed.

NANCY BAKER testified via teleconference from Fairbanks that the
Conference of Alaskans had "different neanings to different
people.” She deferred to the Legislature to make inportant
decisions. She cautioned against anending the Constitution;
however, she supported the POW proposal. She indicated she would
not support a Constitutional anendnment wi thout the inplenentation
of an inconme tax, which she remarked is the fairest nethod to
generate revenue and woul d be the | east expensive to inplenent. She
surm sed those who nobst oppose an incone tax are those who woul d
pay the nost, including Governor Mirkowski. She questioned that the
| egi slators are the best suited to make these deci sions, given that
experts on the matter are avail able and the desire of |egislators
to be reelected. She questioned the denocracy of the State when the
co-chair of the Senate Finance Committee announces that an incone
tax is "off the table"” and woul d not be considered.

Co-Chair WIlken offered to discuss the matter further with the
wi tness and stressed he woul d not support a proposal claimng to be
broad based when it only taxes half the residents.

JAMES E. FISHER testified via tel econference fromKenai that taxes
shoul d be enacted before reductions are nmade to vital prograns
affecting seniors and education. He remarked that other revenues
should be considered and inplenented before earnings of the
Per manent Fund are utilized for governnent services. He quoted,
"The self righteous shall lead us to hell,"” and suggested the
proposed actions would do this.

Senat or Hof f man asked if the w tness supported a sales tax, incone
tax or both.

M. Fisher preferred incone tax due to the dependence of |oca
governnments on sal es taxes, including Sol dotna where he resides.

SFC- 03 (8) 03/ 17/ 04



ANN KI LKENNY, Conferee to Conference of Al askans, testified via
tel econference fromMat-Su that she has conme to understand that the
current nethod of managing the permanent fund is "broken". She
recommended adoption of the POW as an independent proposal. She
asserted the legislature has the duty to prevent a fiscal crisis.
She supported an incone tax and every other proposed tax with the
exception of a sales tax. She remarked the economic limt factor
(ELF) issue relating to taxation on oil production, nust be
revisited. She asked the form of revenue generation the Menbers
prefer.

Senat or Bunde stated that the nore input from constituents the
better able legislators are to nake decisions; however, he noted
that he consistently hears differing opinions of the correct
sol uti on.

CLARENCE FURBUSH testified via tel econference fromMat-Su that the
State is "spending too much noney, otherwi se we wouldn't be here
tonight." He questioned the |arge nunber of school districts,
suggesting that consolidation could reduce expenses. He encouraged
resource developnment. He was disheartened by the demands of
teachers for salary increases and asked the return on investnent of
educating children. He supported a sales tax, but qualified it
shoul d not include food or prescription nedication.

PAM BRADLEY testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks, that she
felt a responsibility to voice her support for POW. However, she
was amazed at the nunber of other resolutions to anmend the
constitution. She predicted that voters woul d approve none due to
the anmpbunt of msinformation that exists. She recomended
protection of the dividend, as dividends were the intent of the
Per manent Fund. She al so supported use of a portion of the earnings
for government services. She predicted it was tinme to re-inpose the
i ncone tax, admtting she does not earn a high incone, despite her
efforts.

ANNA PLACGER testified via teleconference from Fairbanks not
claimng to have any new information but that she felt it inportant
to express her opinion. She stressed the need for a long-term
fiscal plan. She supported nost of the findings of the Conference
of Al askans. Al though she deened the dividend an "inportant tool",
she di d opposed enshrining it in the Constitution. She enphasized
the inmportance of ensuring the "health” of the Fund. She had faith
that |egislators woul d nake appropriate decisions regarding use of
the Permanent Fund, noted if they did not, they would not be
reel ect ed.

SFC- 03 (9) 03/ 17/ 04



Senat or Bunde thanked the witness for the "vote of confidence" in
the process. He asked the public understanding of "long ternt
relating to a fiscal plan.

Ms. Plager replied that 25 years ago the intent was to establish a
savi ngs account. She stated that earnings of that account could now
be utilized to neet public needs, i ncluding education,
transportation and public safety. She acknow edged the plan could
be anended gi ven changi ng circunst ances.

Senat or Bunde shared the witness' position supporting the use of
Per manent Fund earni ngs for governnment services.

Senat or Bunde addressed Senator B. Stevens's legislation to
inplement a sales tax and the exenpted purchases. Senator Bunde
ascertained that if inconme tax were inplenented there would be no
exenptions. He asked therefore why Senator B. Stevens had
consi dered any exenptions for a sales tax.

Senator B. Stevens responded that incone tax taxes a generation for
weal th, while sales tax generates from consunption. He stated that
basi c needs are equally required by all.

Senat or Hoffman pointed out item zed deductions are allowed for
i ncone tax.

Senator B. Stevens agreed deductions are allowed for sone expenses,
such as nedical, but are not allowed for heating or food.

LYNN BURKHARDT testified via teleconference from Honmer that
Governor Miurkowski intended to utilize the Permanent Fund even
before taking office. She noted high oil prices and asserted that
threatening elimnation of teaching positions is a scare tactic.
She surmsed that the Menbers earn too nuch income to fully
appreci ate the dependence on divi dends.

Senat or Bunde questioned that the witness pays the salaries of the
| egi sl ators.

Ms. Burkhardt responded that citizens pay federal taxes.
Senat or Bunde countered that 80 percent of State revenue is from
oi | development. He referenced other testinony that the dividend

was intended to distribute revenue; however, the w tness suggests
this is nore a welfare program

SFC 04 # 51, Side B 08:47 PM

SFC- 03 (10) 03/ 17/ 04



Senat or Hoffrman agreed with the wtness that Al aska residents do
pay |legislators salary. He explained that utilizing a portion of
t he Permanent Fund earnings for governnment services results in |ess
noney avail abl e for dividends.

Senat or Dyson requested the language in the voter information
panphl et on the proposal to establish the Permanent Fund.

Co-Chair Green disagreed with Senator Hof fnman. She al so referenced

the article from The Economi st distributed by M. Sonneman and
disputed its nerits.

ADJ CURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 08:51 PM

SFC- 03 (11) 03/ 17/ 04



